
Meeting papers

Pension Committee

Friday 8 November 2019 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester





Date Published:4 November 2019     

Pension Committee

Friday 8 November 2019 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES Andrea Griffiths

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - 

Members of the Committee are invited to declare any financial or 
pecuniary interest related to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Andrea Griffiths

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - 

To answer any written questions about matters that are within the powers 
and duties of the Committee. The closing date/time for the receipt of 
questions is 10.00am on 1st November 2019.

Andrea Griffiths

4  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS - 

To answer any written members’ questions. The closing date/time for the 
receipt of questions is 10.00am on 1st November 2019.

Andrea Griffiths

5  MINUTES - (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 20th 
September 2019.

Andrea Griffiths

6  PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER (Pages 9 - 18)

The Committee is asked to note the report.  

Mark Spilsbury

7  INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE SUMMARY (Pages 19 - 56)

The Committee is asked to note the report.

Mark Spilsbury

8  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC Cllr Ray 



    

Resolved

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
agenda items, because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public.

Theodoulou

9  EXEMPT MINUTES (Pages 57 - 66)

To approve as a correct record the exempt minutes of the meetings held 
on 20th September 2019.

Andrea Griffiths

10  INDEPENDENT ADVISOR REPORT (Pages 67 - 86)

The Committee is asked to note the report.

John Arthur

11  2019 ACTUARIAL VALUATION - HYMANS ROBERTSON (Pages 87 - 
114)

Mark Spilsbury

Membership –  Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Shaun Parsons, Cllr Rachel Smith, Cllr Lynden Stowe, 
Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr David Brown, Cllr Brian Oosthuysen and Cllr Nigel Moor

Added Members - Peter Clark

Co-Opted Member - Cllr Nigel Cooper

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer 
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny Team)
:01452 324204 /fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

PENSION COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Pension Committee held on Friday 20 September 
2019 commencing at 10.00 am.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Colin Hay
Cllr Shaun Parsons
Cllr Lynden Stowe
Cllr Ray Theodoulou

Cllr David Brown
Cllr Nigel Cooper
Peter Clark

Apologies: Cllr Rachel Smith

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - 

Councillor Stowe declared he was now the GCC Shareholder representative on 
UBICO.    

34. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - 

No public questions were received.

35. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS - 

No Members’ questions were received.  

36. MINUTES - 

It was noted that Cllr Cooper was present at the May meeting, subject to this 
amendment the public minutes of the meeting held on the 10th May 2019 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

Resolved

That the public minutes of the meeting held on the 10th May 2019 be 
approved as a correct record, subject to Cllr Cooper’s attendance being 
amended.   

37. PRESENTATION ON RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

The Committee received a detailed presentation from Faith Ward, Responsible 
Investment Officer and Chris Crozier, Relationship Officer from the Brunel Pension 
Partnership (BPP).  

Members were advised that a sustainable equity mandate would be issued in due 
course.  It was noted that BPP had a detailed responsible investment policy and 
supporting information on their website and this was incorporated this into their 
work ethic.  Alex Bull, Pensions Manager advised the Committee that he also sat on 
the Responsible Investment Sub Group at BPP.  

In response to a question relating to financial sustainable system, Ms Ward 
explained that it involved looking at how our economy could contribute to a more 
sustainable planet, whilst being mindful of the factors which impact on financial 
returns and hence the delivery of pensions.  

Ms Ward advised members that the policy framework was devised in association 
the Government Department for Work and Pensions.  It was explained that there 
was now a more operational focus on the client, and that BPP gave the 
Government advice and feedback.  

It was suggested that should Pension Funds use their influence on Government as 
the value of the funds should not be underestimated.  As many pension funds were 
major investors in Companies and held a great deal of influence in the UK first and 
foremost.  

Members were advised that during the manager selection process, BPP considered 
a number of factors including the team composition, staff turnover, etc and they 
challenged managers on a variety of issues before appointing.  

It it was noted that emerging markets were defined through the MSCI Index, Ms 
Ward explained that China was considered an emerging market as it was not 
possible to access most Chinese businesses.  Members wished to know if there 
was a level playing field across the markets, officers explained it was more a 
question of how risk was being managed, for example in Japan it was unusual to 
have women on the board, therefore it was necessary to have nuances and 
regional expertise.  

The Committee were advised that there were responsible investment levels on 
alcohol, etc but currently not on smoking, however BPP are likely to address this in 
the future.  It was evident there were intrinsic challenges involved in operating to 
different time lines.  In response to a question, members were advised that the 
Committee would receive a quarterly carbon footprint report.  

Members also questioned the ethical and moral trend in pension schemes. Ms 
Ward explained that it was necessary to have an awareness of the issues and have 
a greater understanding as companies who were positioning themselves to be more 
sustainable would probably be in a better position in the longer term.  

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Officers reminded members of the Investor Day which had been arranged by BPP 
and all were welcome to attend.    

The Committee proceeded to discuss the presentation in considerable detail.  The 
Chairperson thanked Faith & Chris for attending and providing the Committee with 
a very detailed presentation, he reiterated that members were concerned by a 
number of issues and that a follow up session would be advisable in due course.  

It was suggested that the Annual Report could include a paragraph on Responsible 
Investing as this would give members of the scheme reassurance.  

Resolved 

That the presentation was received.  

38. RISK REGISTER 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of Pensions introduced the risk register explaining that it had 
been reviewed in August 2019 and a number of changes had been made which 
were all highlighted in yellow within the risk register.   It was noted that the risk 
register was a live document and therefore it was important for it to reflect the 
discussion carried out by the committee. 

Members were informed that since the risk register was last considered by the 
Committee in May 2019 a number of changes have been made:

- F/D3:  A Company admitted to the Fund as an admission body may become 
financially unviable.  The likelihood had reduced from a 3 to a 2 because two high 
risk employers without guarantors left the fund between March 2018 and January 
2019.  Both had now repaid their cessation deficits of around £6m and £6.2m.   

During the discussion, it was noted that it was difficult to include political risk, as it 
was subjective and this was usually taken into account during the strategic asset 
allocation.      

Resolved 

That the committee noted the Risk Register.

39. DRAFT PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 

Alex Bull, Finance Manager (Pensions & Investments) presented the report.  The 
draft Pension Fund Annual Report for 2018/19 was prepared in accordance with the 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations, which set out what should be 
included with Annual Reports.

The regulations governing the content of the Annual Report required it to be 
published on or before 1st December following the year end, and subject to any 
changes requested by the Committee.  

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

It was noted that officers had included the summary sections on pages 3 to 6 
following its introduction during 2017/18.  This section includes a more graphical 
presentation of the key information contained within the full report.  Officer’s 
explained the intention was that the summary introduction section could be read as 
a standalone summary of the Annual Report.  Members requested that a 
highlighted note be included clearly stating this fact and that some information on 
the BPP and responsible investment should also be included in the Annual Report.  

Officers explained that the Annual report included Pension Fund Accounts for 
2018/19 and these accounts had been audited and received an unqualified audit 
opinion, and were considered by the Audit & Governance Committee on the 26th 
July 2019.  

In addition, the annual report now included a section on Investment Pooling which 
set out the costs and savings resulting from the pooling initiative in the format 
required by CIPFA..  

After some discussion, the committee noted the Pension Fund Annual Accounts 
and Annual Report.  Members were requested to send any further suggested 
amendments or comments relating to the Annual Report to Officers by 10th October 
2019.    

Resolved 

That the report be noted.  

That any further comments or amendments be submitted by members of the 
committee by the 10th October 2019.  

40. PENSION BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund presented the report in detail.  He 
informed the Committee that the Board had two meetings relating to the 2018/19 
financial year.   The Committee noted that Sean Collins (Head of Pensions for 
Oxfordshire) was the Chairman of the Gloucestershire Pension Board, as he had 
good experience and knowledge of the LGPS, which was invaluable.   

In response to a question, it was noted that all Board Members were appointed for 
a four year period and after consultation the majority of members had agreed to 
continue their appointments.  

Resolved 

That the report be noted.   

41. PENSION ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE REPORT 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, gave a detailed presentation of the 
Pension Administration Performance. 
 
In response to a question, it was noted that six full time members of staff had been 
recruited with the agreement of the Pension Committee to administer the fund, 
which had contributed to the improved performance.  The Head of the Pension 
Fund explained that it took time to train staff and naturally this had impacted on 
performance targets. 

Members were advised that the fund performance in 2018/19 was moving in the 
right direction, however  improvement was still required in relation to the processing 
of Retirement/Lump Sums (69%) and Deaths Grants (82%).  The Head of the 
Pension Fund anticipated this should be overcome by recruiting more senior staff, 
as approved by the Pension Committee,  to increase performance.  
 
It was noted that in terms of death grants this usually occurred within 8 days after 
the receipt of the legal paperwork.  However, the team would ensure the funds were 
paid to the right person, regardless of the time factor. In response to a question, it 
was explained that, on occasion some people attempted to claim a death grant to 
which they were not entitled too.  The Committee were advised that it took a lot of 
resources to clarify the situation to ensure that death grants are always paid to the 
correct person(s).

The Committee noted that the GCC Pensions Team had signed up to the ‘Tell us 
once’ service operated by the registration service.    
 
During the discussion, members referred to people who were still claiming a 
pension, when the pensioner had passed away.  It was explained that, where 
actions were felt to be fraudulent, the matter would be referred to the Police.  
 
The Committee were pleased to note the improving performance and remarked on 
the positive efforts made by the team. 

Resolved
 
That the report be noted.

42. MARKET VALUATIONS & QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF 
PENSION FUND : QUARTER 2 2019 

Alex Bull Finance Manager (Pension and Investments), presented an overview of 
market valuations and an update on the performance of the Gloucestershire Local 
Government Pension Scheme, (LGPS), as at 30 June 2019. 

The report was sub-divided into four areas, detailing information on i) Manager 
Performance; ii) Asset Allocation; iii) Market Values, and iv) Cash Position. The 
Committee discussed the report in detail.  

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Members were referred to the summary report (page 215), which included the 
benchmark and performance target and the Brunel performance.   Officers 
explained that the next detailed report would be produced by the BPP rather than 
the custodian  and would clearly report on the bench mark and out performance 
target, together with relevant responsible investment information..    

Resolved 

That the performance report was noted.  

43. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

It was resolved 

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda items, 
because it is likely that if members of the public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 & 5 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the 
public. 

44. EXEMPT MINUTES 

It was noted that Cllr Cooper was present at the May meeting, subject to this 
amendment the exempt minutes of the meeting held on the 10th May 2019 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

Resolved

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on the 10th May 2019 be 
approved as a correct record, subject to Cllr Cooper’s attendance being 
amended.   

45. INDEPENDENT ADVISORS QUARTERLY REVIEW 

Independent Advisor, John Arthur, provided members with an update on current 
investments.  It was reported that the Pension Fund slightly underperformed against 
its performance target in Q2 2019.  The level of underperformance was within risk 
tolerances, it was reported that the fund was close to achieving its performance 
target over the medium and longer term.  The Committee were referred to the 
detailed Performance and Executive Summaries contained within the report.    

Resolved 

That the report be noted.  

46. ADMISSION BODY REQUESTS 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

The committee received a report from the Director of Strategic Finance. 

Resolved 

That the Committee approved the Officer’s recommendation.

47. REVIEW OF STRATEGIC ASSET ALLOCATION 

The Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury presented the report in detail. 
Members were advised of the current position.  
 
Resolved 

That the Committee noted the report and approved the Officer 
recommendation.  

48. ILL HEALTH PENSION STRAIN COSTS 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund presented the report and advised 
members of the current position.  

Resolved

That the Committee considered the report and approved the Officer 
recommendation.  

49. BRUNEL PENSION PARTNERSHIP UPDATE 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund updated the committee.  

He confirmed the timetable for the implementation of the BPP Investment 
Portfolio’s, and the agreed Strategic Asset allocation ranges confirmed by the 
Committee.   

Resolved 

That the report be received.  

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 1.24 pm

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Pension Committee
8th November 2019

Review of the
Pension Fund Risk Register 

Report of the Director of Finance

The attached Risk Register reflects the risks relating to the Pension Fund and 
indicates the significance of each risk.

As per previous reports the significance of individual risks is measured by a 
scoring system which multiplies the likelihood of the occurrence with the 
potential impact of such an occurrence. Both “likelihood” and “impact” are 
scored 1 – 5 and after multiplying both numbers together, the higher the 
product, the higher the risk.

Risk Score Range Risk Category
1 to 6 Low
7 to 12 Medium
13 to 25 High

The attached Risk Register shows each risk, scored before and after controls 
are in place (i.e. the inherent and residual risks).

The risks are referenced as follows:

Financial Risks (F)
Funding / Demography Risks (F/D)
Administration / Regulatory Risks (A/R)
Governance Risks (G)

Since the risk register was last considered by the Pension Committee in 
September 2019, a number of changes have been made, which are all 
highlighted in yellow, with the new narrative being shown in red, in the 
attached updated risk register.

The residual risk scores of the following risks have been amended:

Risk F3 – Fall in risk free returns on Government Bonds leading to a rise in 
the value placed on liabilities.

The likelihood has reduced from a 3 to a 2 because of the outcome of the 
2019 triennial valuation of the Fund, which used a discount rate based on an 
asset outperformance assumption over bond rates, under which the funding 
position will improve significantly.

Risk F4 – Increasing Pension Fund Deficit (over the long term)

The likelihood has reduced from a 3 to a 2 because of the outcome of the 
2019 triennial valuation of the Fund, under which the funding position will 
improve significantly.

F/D1 – Pensioners living longer and increasing the cost to the Fund.

The likelihood has reduced from a 3 to a 2 because detailed Gloucestershire 
related longevity data, which has been used as part of the 2019 valuation of 
the Fund, indicates that the level of increase in longevity is slowing down.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



G5 – Lack of relevant expertise, knowledge, skills and resources at officer and 
member level in relation to the administering the LGPS.

The likelihood of this risk has, temporarily, increased from a 3 to a 4, to cover 
the period of recruitment of, and knowledge transfer to, a new Head of the 
Gloucestershire Pension Fund, following the imminent retirement of the 
current post holder.

The other changes relate to amended period comments which are shown in 
red text. These update the risk register to reflect the current position, without 
changing the overall residual risk score. 

The main changes relate to:

 the likely outcome of the 2019 triennial valuation of the Fund;
 the review of the strategic asset allocation which will be undertaken in 

the context of the valuation results;
 the changes in the ill health pension strain insurance arrangements,
 the position relating to the small number of admitted bodies without a 

guarantor.

Finally, the old risk F/D3, which was: “a company admitted to the Fund as an 
admission body may become financially unviable”, largely duplicated the old 
risk F8 which was “employers without a guarantor fail financially leaving a 
deficit with the Fund”. 

Hence the old risk F/D3 has now been deleted from the risk register and risk 
F8 has been slightly amended to read:

“A company, without a guarantor, admitted to the Fund as an admission body, 
may become financially unviable, leaving a significant financial deficit with the 
Fund”.

Recommendation

That the Committee notes the risk register.

Contact Officer

Mark Spilsbury - Head of Pension Fund (01452 328920)

Page 10



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER UPDATED IN OCTOBER 2019 FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE PENSION COMMITTEE IN NOVEMBER 2019

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences  if risk occurs and
related objectives Owner

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity

Controls

Residual Risk
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of
Risk or
Opportunity Period Comments / Additional Actions

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.

Date of last
review.L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

F1
Fund assets fail to deliver returns in line with the
anticipated returns underpinning valuation of
liabilities over the long-term

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund 4 4 16

Only anticipate long-term return on a
relatively prudent basis (currently 4.2% pa
for on-going employers per the 2019
valuation) to reduce risk of under-
performing.
Assets invested on the basis of specialist
advice, in a suitably diversified manner
across asset classes, geographies,
managers, etc.
Analyse progress at three yearly
valuations for all employers, with strategic
asset allocation to be re-examined by an
investment specialist in the context of the
2019 valuation results..
Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities
between valuations at whole Fund level.
Actuarial Review on a like for like basis
has confirmed a strong deficit recovery
plan.

2 4 8 ► Financial

Due to increased uncertainty regarding
BREXIT and other political risks and
possible negative long term implications,
this risk is continually monitored to
determine whether the  likelihood of this
risk materialising needs to be increased.
Although investment returns over the last 3
years have been very high, returns are
likely to fall over the next 3 year period,
hence it does not appear to be appropriate
to reduce the likelihood risk rating below
the current 2 level.

28/08/2019

F2 Inappropriate long-term investment strategy. The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund 4 4 16

Regular monitoring of Fund's cash flow
with actuarial estimates of future cash
flow position.                               Overall
investment strategy options including
diversification considered as an integral
part of the funding strategy.  Use of asset
liability modelling.   Actuarial Review on a
like for like basis has confirmed a strong
deficit recovery plan.

2 4 8 ► Financial

Investment specialists from MJ Hudson
engaged to undertake a review of the long
term investment strategy in the context of
the 2019 valuation results. This process

commences with an investment risk
workshop on 8th December to determine

the Committee's appetite to risk. The
proposed new strategic asset allocation

and investment strategy will then be
submitted to the 6th December Committee

meeting, before being issued for
consultation to the Employers within the

Fund. The proposed final strategic
investment allocation and strategy will then

be submitted to the February meeting of
the Committee together with any feedback

received.

30/10/2019

F3 Fall in risk-free returns on Government bonds,
leading to rise in value placed on liabilities.

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Stabilisation modelling at whole Fund
level allows for the probability of this
within a longer term context.
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above.
Some investment in bonds helps to
mitigate this risk.   Actuarial Review on a
like for like basis has confirmed a strong
deficit recovery plan.

2 3 6 ▼ Financial

Assumed long term investment return set
as 4.2% for on-going employers under the
2019 valuation. This long term investment
return is one of the factors used to
determine the contributions for all
employers covering the period 2020/21 to
2022/23.

30/10/2019

1e

P
age 11



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

F4 Increasing Pension Fund deficit The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Actuarial review via Triennial Valuation
and regular update reports.
Regular consideration by Pension
Committee on manager performance
relative to funding assumptions, funding
position and funding strategy.  Actuarial
Review on a like for like basis has
confirmed a strong deficit recovery plan.

2 3 6 ▼ Financial

Following the 2019 valuation the Funding
level of the Gloucestershire Fund is
expected to rise from 80% as at the 2016
valuation to 102% at the 2019 valuation.
This moves the Fund from a deficit position
of £435 million to a surplus position of £41
million.

30/10/2019

F5 Active investment manager under-performance
relative to benchmark.

Maximising investment returns to help
the Fund achieve its funding target

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Quarterly investment monitoring analyses
market performance and active managers
relative to their index benchmark.
Diversification of investments across
asset classes and across different fund
managers

2 3 6 ► Financial

Performance in the current portfolio's and
in the new BPP portfolio's will be
monitored against agreed performance
targets and will be reported back to the
Committee on a quarterly basis. However
in the context of the performance in
quarter 4 of 2018 the likelihood of this risk
had been increased from a 2 to a 3.  In the
context of the returns for the full Q1 2019
the likelihood score has been returned to a
2.

30/10/2019

F6 Pay and price inflation significantly more than
anticipated.

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund 4 2 8

The focus of the actuarial valuation
process is on real returns on assets, net
of price and pay increases.
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above,
gives early warning.
Some investment in index-linked bonds
also helps to mitigate this risk.
Employers pay for their own salary
awards and should be mindful of the
geared effect on pension liabilities of any
bias in pensionable pay rises towards
longer-serving employees.

3 2 6 ► Financial 30/10/2019

F7 Unexpected increase in employer’s contribution
rate

To stabilise changes in employer
contribution rates over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

An explicit stabilisation mechanism has
been agreed for eligible employers as part
of the funding strategy.  Other measures
are also in place to limit sudden increases
in contributions.
Obtain information on financial strength of
individual employers. Discuss with
employers their ability to absorb rises in
their level of contribution.
Where appropriate mitigate impact
through deficit spreading and phasing in
of contribution rises, with appropriate
security from employers and further
analysis by the Fund’s actuary.

2 3 6 ► Financial

Following the 2019 valuation of the Fund
the contribution rates for the vast majority
of employers will remain at the levels set
under the 2016 valuation or will reduce.

30/10/2019

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences  if risk occurs and
related objectives Owner

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity

Controls

Residual Risk
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of
Risk or
Opportunity Period Comments / Additional Actions

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.

Date of last
review.L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

P
age 12



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

F8

A company, without a guarantor, admitted to the
Fund as an admission body may become
financially unviable, leaving a significant financial
deficit with the Fund.

To ensure individual employers in the
Fund are responsible for their own
costs

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Under current admission rules, a
transferee admission body will always
have a funding guarantee from the
transferring scheme employer. A
community admission body will only be
admitted to the Fund if they have a
funding guarantee from a scheme
employer with tax raising powers. A
surety bond to cover the cost of paying
pensions early if the company goes into
liquidation is also generally required by
the scheme employer to cover the
potential risk of the admitted body
becoming insolvent and the value of this
surety or bond is reviewed regularly to
ensure it provides adequate cover for the
financial risks involved. Many years ago,
prior to the introduction of these rules,
some employers were admitted to the
Fund without guarantors. At the start of
2019/20 there were seven "old"
employers within the Fund without a
guarantor.

2 3 6 ► Financial

The residual risk was reduced in 2019
because two high risk employers without
guarantors left the fund between March
2018 and January 2019. Both have now
repaid their cessation deficits of around
£6m  and £6.2m respectively. Since this
date, as part of the 2019 valuation of the
Fund, Gloucester City Council and
Cheltenham Borough Council have agreed
to act as guarantors for Gloucestershire
Airport LGPS liabilities. Once the legalities
are completed this will result in lower
contributions for Gloucestershire Airport
and a reduced risk to the Fund. Four other
Admitted Bodies without guarantors now
remain within the Fund. As part of the
2019 valuation it is intended that
contibution rates for these employers are
calculated based on a lower GILTS based
investment return, which results in higher
contributions. Meetings will be held with
these employers to better understand their
longer term pension plans and financial
viability, in order to see if the risks to the
Fund can be further reduced.

30/10/2019

F9 Financial loss experienced during the transitioning
of Assets to the new Brunel Portfolio's

Maximising investment returns to help
the Fund achieve its funding target

Head of Pension
Fund 3 5 15

Detailed reconciliation of assets
transferred undertaken by the Finance
and Investments Manager. Detailed report
from transition experts commissioned by
the Brunel PP will be produced following
each transition to provide assurance to
clients.

2 4 8 ► Financial

£510m has been transitioned to the BPP
passive portfolio's and £345m to the BPP
UK Equities active portfolio and a
reconciliation has confirmed that all assets
transitioned as expected. Similar
processes will be used for future
transitions.

30/10/2019

F/D1 Pensioners living longer, thus increasing cost to
Fund.

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund 5 2 10

Set mortality assumptions with some
allowance for future increases in life
expectancy.
The Fund Actuary has direct access to
the experience of over 50 LGPS funds
which allows early identification of
changes in life expectancy that might in
turn affect the assumptions underpinning
the valuation.
The Fund also sets life expectancy
assumptions using ClubVita, which is a
specialised longevity company and
provides life expectancy assumptions
based on the profile of the Fund’s own
membership.
Administering Authority encourage any
employers concerned at costs to promote
later retirement culture.  Each 1 year rise
in the average age at retirement would
save roughly 5% of pension costs.

2 2 4 ▼ Financial

This has been addressed under the 2019
valuation of the Fund with specific
Gloucestershire related data being
supplied by Club Vita analysis, hence
longevity movements have been taken into
account under the 2019 valuation.

30/10/2019

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences  if risk occurs and
related objectives Owner

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity

Controls

Residual Risk
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of
Risk or
Opportunity Period Comments / Additional Actions

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.

Date of last
review.L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

P
age 13



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

F/D2

Maturing Fund – i.e. proportion of actively
contributing employees declines relative to retired
employees leading to the possibility of there not
being sufficient liquid funds available to pay
liabilities as they fall due.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Continue to monitor at each valuation,
seeking monetary amounts rather than %
of pay. Between valuations regularly
monitor level of active members on both a
total Fund basis and by individual
employer. Regularly monitor how cash
flow positive the Fund is. Regularly review
investment strategy.

2 3 6 ► Financial

The Fund commissioned Hymans
Robertson to undertake cash flow
modelling based on the following three
scenarios:
Scenario 1 – cash flows projections based
on 2016 valuation membership data,
Scenario 2 – cash flows projections based
on 2016 valuation membership data, with a
20% reduction in actives, Scenario 3  -
with a 40% reduction in active members.
This modelling indicated that the fund will
remain cash flow positive until 2033 under
scenario1, to 2026 under scenario 2 and
would immediately become casflow
negative under scenario 3. Given that
active membership in the Gloucestershire
scheme is still increasing slightly it is felt
that scenario 1 is the most likely outcome
for the fund.

30/10/2019

F/D3 Deteriorating patterns of early retirements
To ensure individual employers in the
Fund are responsible for their own
costs

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Employers are charged the extra cost of
non ill-health retirements following each
individual decision. 2 3 6 ► Financial 30/10/2019

F/D4 Reductions in payroll causing insufficient deficit
recovery payments

To ensure individual employers in the
Fund are responsible for their own
costs

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Require employers to pay sums due for
deficit recovery contributions as a fixed
monetary amount rather than being
expressed as a % of pay.

2 3 6 ► Financial 30/10/2019

F/D5 Ill-health retirements significantly more than
anticipated

To ensure individual employers in the
Fund are responsible for their own
costs

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Monitoring of each employer’s ill-health
experience on an ongoing basis. The
employer may be charged additional
contributions if this exceeds the ill-health
assumption built in. Ill health insurance is
available to be purchased by individual
employers

2 3 6 ► Financial

Aa new ill health liability insurance
procedure is being introduced from 1 April
2020 under which all Town and Parish
Council's, Academy Schools and Admitted
Bodies without guarantors, as the highest
risk employers within the fund in relation to
this issue are included within an overall
external insurance policy arranged by the
fund, funded within the contributions set
under the 2019 valuation. All other
employers will be included within the cover
of a central policy unless they formally opt
out of cover, under the procedures agreed
by the Pension Committee in September
2019. Employers who do opt out of
insurance will have their contributions
reduced by the cost of central insurance
cover. Full details of the new
arrangements are being sent to all
employers with the details of the outcome
of the 2019 valuation and the contributions
set for the period 2020/21 to 2022/23.

30/10/2019

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences  if risk occurs and
related objectives Owner

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity

Controls

Residual Risk
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of
Risk or
Opportunity Period Comments / Additional Actions

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.

Date of last
review.L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

P
age 14



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

F/D6

Adverse effect on the Fund’s investment strategy
and employer contributions if large numbers of
active members are outsourced on a “closed” (to
new entrants) basis

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund 3 3 9

Take advice from the Fund actuary on the
likely impact this will have on Fund
investment out performance assumptions
and employer contributions. Monitor
levels of outsourcings on a “closed” basis
and advise employers of implications so
these are taken into account when they
consider the business case for an
outsourcing. Regularly review investment
strategy and strategic asset allocation.

2 3 6 ► Financial

No significant impact to date, but the risk
will continue to be monitored on a regular
basis. The comPASS modelling of
contributions payable by GCC, the Police
and District Council's has taken account of
this, especially the Publica outsourcing
and hence this will be taken into account
when the employer contributions are set
for the tears 2020/21 to 2022/23.

30/10/2019

F/D7
Transfers out of the Fund into DC schemes due to
introduction of "Freedom & Choice" resulting in a
change in funding level

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund 3 3 9

Taken advice from the Fund actuary on
the proportion of the Fund's active and
deferred members aged 55 or over and
the maximum exposure of the Fund to
these transfers, split between active and
deferred members. Considered impact on
funding level given different possible
levels of take up from active and deferred
members.

2 2 4 ► Financial

The comPASS modelling of contributions
payable by GCC, the Police and District
Council's has taken account of this,
especially the Publica outsourcing and
hence this will be taken into account when
the employer contributions are set for the
tears 2020/21 to 2022/23.

30/10/2019

A/R1.1

Significant additional costs resulting from changes
to national pension requirements and/or HMRC
rules e.g. changes arising from public sector
pensions reform, and/or more complex regulations
requiring increased administration resources.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 3 3 9

The Administering Authority considers all
consultation papers issued by the
Government and comments where
appropriate. Considered different % take
up scenarios for active and deferred
members
The results of the most recent reforms
have been built into the 2013 valuation.
Any changes to member contribution
rates or benefit levels will be carefully
communicated with members to minimise
possible opt-outs or adverse actions.

2 3 6 ► Legislative &
Regulatory

In order to effectively deal with the
increased workload emanating from the
new 2016 CARE scheme, additional
pensions officers were recruited to in the
Pension Administration Team during 2016
as stage 1 of a review of the Pension
Administration Team. A further four staff
members have now been recruited in 2018
under stage 2 of the review. The Pension
Committee agreed at it's May 19 meeting
to build in sufficient resources within the
budget to action Stage 3 of the review
which is to increase the number of senior
pension officers by three, from four to
seven.

30/10/2019

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences  if risk occurs and
related objectives Owner

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity

Controls

Residual Risk
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of
Risk or
Opportunity Period Comments / Additional Actions

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.

Date of last
review.L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

P
age 15



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

A/R 1.2

Under resourcing of Pension Administration staff
resulting in a deterioration of performance against
key performance indicators and/or intervention from
the Pensions Regulator.

Experience indicates that intervention
by the Pensions Regulator has major
implications in terms of increased
workload and/or adverse financial
implications.

Head of Pension
Fund 4 4 16

This risk is regularly monitored and, as
detailed in risk A/R 1.1 actions have
already been taken to increase the level
of Pensions Officers in order to improve
performance against key performance
indicators.

3 3 9 ► Legislative &
Regulatory

In order to effectively deal with the
increased workload emanating from the
new 2016 CARE scheme, additional
pensions officers were recruited to in the
Pension Administration Team during 2016
as stage 1 of a review of the Pension
Administration Team. A further four staff
members have now been recruited in 2018
under stage 2 of the review. The Pension
Committee agreed at it's May 19 meeting
to build in sufficient resources within the
budget to action Stage 3 of the review
which is to increase the number of senior
pension officers by three, from four to
seven.

30/10/2019

A/R2 Failure to collect and account for contributions from
employers and employees on time

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Regular monthly monitoring and
reconciliation of Fund contributions
received, including a detailed analysis of
individual employer contributions and
employee contributions by pay banding.
Robust debt management processes are
in place  to recover any late payments

2 3 6 ► Legislative &
Regulatory 30/10/2019

A/R3 Loss of funds through fraud or misappropriation

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Procedures and processes are in place
and applied in relation to eg: checking for
"ghost" scheme members;  multiple levels
of authorisation for claims and fund
payments plus secondary checking of
lump sum payments. Procedures are
documented and staff are trained and
managed in carrying these out. The
Fund's internal auditors carry out regular
reviews.

2 3 6 ► Fraud

The funds internal auditors regularly
review the adequacy of controls within the
Pensions Section. These reviews make
use of experienced Counter Fraud staff
who are available to the internal auditors.

30/10/2019

A/R4

Does the fund have sufficient resources to provide
sufficient input to the development of the Brunel
Pension Partnership in the context of the
importance of ensuring that the partnership
operates in an efficient and effective manner.

To ensure the fund is proactive in the
development of the proposals and the
robust control environment required
for the collective management of
assets, to avoid a detrimental impact
on the fund.

Head of Pension
Fund 4 4 16

Additional staffing resources may be
required to facilitate dedicated staffing
resources to take forward the pooling
proposal. This may require additional
contributions from participating funds.

2 3 6 ► Legislative &
Regulatory

Now that the partnership has developed to
the establishment of the new company,
with senior appointments being made,
limited senior officer resources can now be
more directed at the important client side
roles, including looking at the adequacy of
control systems.

30/10/2019

A/R5

Failure to undertake a full reconciliation of
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions records held on the
Gloucestershire LGPS Altair system with those held
by HMRC could result in additional financial costs
to the Gloucestershire Fund.

Additional financial costs to the Fund Head of Pension
Fund 5 3 15

A detailed reconciliation procedure has
commenced and a large number of
discrepancies have been identified where
the Gloucestershire Pension Fund is not
liable for GMP payments held on HMRC
records.

2 3 6 ► Governance

Detailed reconciliation process completed
and results returned to HMRC which has
resulted in a significant reduction in
potential abilities.

30/10/2019

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences  if risk occurs and
related objectives Owner

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity

Controls

Residual Risk
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of
Risk or
Opportunity Period Comments / Additional Actions

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.

Date of last
review.L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

P
age 16



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

G1

Administering Authority unaware of structural
changes in an employer’s membership (e.g. large
fall in employee members, large number of
retirements) or not advised of an employer closing
to new entrants

The achievement of fully funded
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority has a close
relationship with employing bodies and
communicates required standards e.g. for
submission of data.
The Actuary may revise the rates and
Adjustments certificate to increase an
employer’s contributions (under
Regulation 38) between triennial
valuations
Deficit contributions may be expressed as
monetary amounts.

2 3 6 ► Governance 30/10/2019

G2
Actuarial or investment advice is not sought, or is
not heeded, or proves to be insufficient in some
way

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority maintains
close contact with its specialist advisers.
Advice is delivered via formal meetings
involving Elected Members, and recorded
appropriately.
Actuarial advice is subject to professional
requirements such as peer review

2 3 6 ► Governance 30/10/2019

G3
Administering Authority failing to commission the
Fund Actuary to carry out a termination valuation
for a departing Admission Body.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority requires
employers with Best Value contractors  (
Transferee Admission Bodies) to inform it
of forthcoming changes. The
administering authority also monitors
contract periods of Transferee Admission
Bodies and regularly monitors levels of
active employees across all employers
but particularly for Community Admission
Bodies. Where their active membership
materially decreases further steps are
taken.

2 3 6 ► Governance 30/10/2019

G4 Failure to comply with the Myners’ Investment
Principles

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Compliance as detailed in the Statement
of Investment Principles is kept under
regular review.

2 3 6 ► Governance 30/10/2019

G5
Lack of relevant expertise, knowledge, skills and
resources at officer and member level in relation to
administering the LGPS

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 4 3 12

Training needs assessments for the
Administering Authority are carried out
and an annual training plan produced.
The Fund subscribes to the CIPFA
Knowledge and Skills Framework for the
LGPS and makes this information
available to all members of the Pension
Committee and relevant officers.
Appropriately qualified external advisers
and consultants are used as appropriate.

4 3 12 ▲ Governance

Although this risk has increased following
the promotion of the Finance Manager to a
more senior post within another LGPS
Fund, and the decision of the current Head
of Pensions to retire, adequate safeguards
have been introduced to minimise any
disruption. The Head of Pensions has
given an extended notice period designed
to allow for the recruitment, via a national
procedure, of a suitably qualified and
experienced successor, and to allow for a
reasonable knowledge transfer period.

30/10/2019

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences  if risk occurs and
related objectives Owner

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity

Controls

Residual Risk
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of
Risk or
Opportunity Period Comments / Additional Actions

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.

Date of last
review.L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

P
age 17



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

G6 Failure to internally hold personal data securely
and keep pension records up-to-date and accurate

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 4 4 16

Personal data and scanned documents
relating to scheme members are
maintained in an online system with
logical access controls via individual
password access for those that need to
maintain and access this information.
Procedures for maintaining pension
records are documented and the process
is monitored and managed within the
Pensions Administration team.
Procedures are regularly reviewed by the
Fund's internal auditors. Physical access
controls are also in operation within the
Pension Fund office.

1 4 4 ► Governance 30/10/2019

G7

Loss of experience on the Pension Fund
Committee or Pension Board, and/or the lack of
adequate training, resulting in a negative impact on
governance arrangements within the
Gloucestershire LGPS.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 3 4 12

Training is provided on an on-going basis
to Committee and Board Members both at
formal meetings of the Committee/Board
and at internal and external training
sessions.

1 4 4 ► Governance

The Pension Board was established in
2015 with members appointed for a period
of 4 years, which can be extended by 4
years with the agreement of the member of
the Board. Four members who have
served for 4 years have been written to to
see if they are willing to continue to sit on
the Board for up to a further 4 years. At the
time of update three members have
confirmed that they are willing to stay on
the Board.

30/10/2019

G8

Transition from the current custodian to State
Street Bank under the Brunel Pension Partnership
resulting in failings during the transition and/or
inadequate performance reports post transition
and/or negative impacts on the final accounts of the
Pension Fund due to failings in the accounting
reports received from State Street Bank

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 3 4 12

Detailed control procedures implemented
during the transition with support from a
transition manager working for the Brunel
Pension Partnership

1 3 3 ► Governance

No major problems were encountered
during the transitions undertaken to date
and assets transferred were reconciled
back to the detailed records held by each
manager.

30/10/2019

G9

Failure to comply with the General Data Protection
Regulation resulting in breaches which have to be
reported to the Pension Regulator and the
Information Commissioners Office resulting in
complaints from scheme members and/or
significant financial fines.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 5 4 20

Detailed guidance and support was
obtained from the GCC Information
Management Team which resulted in
additional guidance being provided on the
Pension Fund website to meet the
requirements of GDPR.

3 4 12 ► Governance

Detailed guidance and support was
obtained from the GCC Information
Management Team which resulted in
additional guidance being provided on the
Pension Fund website to meet the
requirements of GDPR.

30/10/2019

G10

Failure to protect the Pension Fund's key
information and data as a result of exploited
technological vulnerabilities facilitated through
malicious attack, primarily from external sources.

Efficient management of the Fund by
the Administering Authority, ensuring
it's responsibilities are met, while costs
are minimised

Head of Pension
Fund 5 4 20

Anti-malware and internet security
software. Patch management policies and
procedures. Compliance with PSN.
Internal and External ICT security testing.
Manging user privileges.

3 3 9 ► Governance 30/10/2019

Ref Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or
Consequences  if risk occurs and
related objectives Owner

Inherent Risk
or Opportunity

Controls

Residual Risk
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of
Risk or
Opportunity Period Comments / Additional Actions

All risks are
monitored on an
on-going basis.

Date of last
review.L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

P
age 18



Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund

Performance Report - Q3 to 30th September 2019

Performance by Manager vs Benchmark and Performance Target

Market Value 

30.06.19

Market Value 

30.09.19

Manager Mandate Inception Date £000's £000's
Actual 

Performance %

Benchmark 

%

Actual 

Performance %

Benchmark 

%

Actual 

Performance %

Benchmark 

%

Actual 

Performance %

Benchmark 

%

Gloucestershire Pension Fund Mandates

Aberdeen Standard - GARS Global Absolute Return Nov-12 79,332            80,594           1.5 1.5 4.6 6.1 1.9 5.8 3.0 5.7

Blackrock Emerging Markets Emerging Markets Passive Jan-12 147,175         145,429        -1.2 -1.1 3.7 3.7 8.0 7.9 7.1 6.8

Blackrock Global Global Equities Apr-05 487,900         499,684        2.4 3.3 5.6 7.3 12.9 11.7 10.3 9.8

WAMCO Global Fixed Interest Apr-05 353,050         365,468        3.5 3.7 10.3 10.8 2.6 2.7 6.4 6.8

WAMCO GMS Global Multi Strategy FI Sep-11 190,082         190,286        0.0 0.7 7.3 2.9 3.0 2.6 3.7 2.6

Hermes UK Property Apr-05 141,791         142,415        0.3 0.5 2.6 2.8 8.0 7.2 6.6 5.0

CBREI Global Property Jun-11 62,093            62,879           1.2 0.6 4.5 2.9 6.6 7.2 8.7 8.0

Golub Capital Partners Private Debt Jul-17 23,572            27,388           5.2 1.5 14.7 6.0 - - 11.7 5.8

Bluebay Asset Management Private Debt Aug-17 21,613            22,065           2.1 1.5 9.7 6.0 - - 7.3 5.8

Yorkshire Fund Managers/TVP Venture Capital 4,951              4,943             - - - - - - - -

In-house Cash Cash 30,761            31,045           - - - - - - - -

Fund Manager Cash Cash 1,252              110                - - - - - - - -

Brunel Pension Partnership Mandates

Brunel - Fundrock UK Active Equity Nov-18 377,263         378,367        0.3 1.3 - - - - 9.6 10.8

Brunel PP - LGIM Low Carbon Equities Jul-18 54,252            56,577           4.3 4.3 9.0 9.0 - - 10.0 10.1

Brunel PP - LGIM Passive Developed Equities (Unhdg) Jul-18 135,801         141,121        3.9 3.9 7.9 7.9 - - 9.2 9.3

Brunel PP - LGIM Passive Developed Equities (Hdg) Jul-18 129,021         130,905        1.5 1.5 1.7 1.6 - - 3.3 3.4

Brunel PP - LGIM Smart Beta Jul-18 231,669         243,495        5.1 5.1 11.1 11.4 - - 10.5 10.7

Brunel - Colmore Infrastructure Jan-19 2,189              4,604             -0.3 0.6 - - - - -4.1 1.3

Brunel - Colmore Private Equity Mar-19 1,689              2,754             20.0 3.4 - - - - 43.2 12.6

Gloucestershire Pension Fund Total 2,475,456      2,530,129     2.0 2.6 5.6 6.7 8.1 7.8 7.7 8.3

Key:

GARS - Global Absolute Return Strategy

WAMCO - Western Asset Management Company

GMS - Global Multi Strategy

TVP - Technology Venture Partners

Brunel PP - Brunel Pension Partnership

LGIM - Legal & General Investment Management

"Unhdg" - Unhedged

"Hdg" - Hedged

Non-performance related changes in the quarter:

Aberdeen Standard (Fund Manager Cash) -£1,147,851.26

Capital commitments made to managers (£)

Golub £3,093,178.92

Brunel - Colmore Infrastructure £2,052,414.56

Brunel - Colmore Private Equity £641,139.76

3 Years to 30-Sep-19  

Annualised Return

1 Year to 30-Sep-19  Total 

Return

3 Months to 30-Sep-19 Total 

Return

Since Inception to 30-Sep-19  

Annualised Return

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Information Classification: Public

P
age 21



Contents

Page 3     -    About Brunel and News

Page 4     -    Executive_Summary

Page 5     -    Market Summary – Chief Investment Officer

Page 9     -    Market Summary – Head of Private Markets

Page 13     -    Responsible Investment & Stewardship Review

Page 16     -    High Level Performance of Pension Fund

Page 18     -    Asset Allocation of Pension Fund

Page 19     -    High Level Performance of Pension Fund – Risk Summary

Page 20     -    Brunel Portfolios Overview

Forging better futures
Information Classification: Public

Gloucestershire County Council

Brunel Portfolio Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Page 2 of 35

P
age 22



About Brunel and News

Over the past quarter, Brunel has faced a number of challenges, and welcomed some fresh developments which we hope you will celebrate with
us.

• In July we appointed our new Non-Executive Director, Patrick Newberry, who will also Chair our Audit Risk and Compliance Committee. Patrick
will formally take up the role upon FCA approval

• In August we announced that Brunel’s charities for 2019-2020 are the Royal National Lifeboat Institution (RNLI) and Clean Up Bristol Harbour
(CUBH). The choice of the two associated charities comes via The Bristol Gulls, four intrepid rowers who include Brunel’s own Sofia Deambrosi
(Investment Officer, Private Markets). The Bristol Gulls aim to take part in a rowing race across the Atlantic Ocean in December 2020, a
monumental venture that can inspire us all!

• Brunel staff have been making waves recently, with our CRIO Faith Ward taking part in an Asset TV masterclass and our Chair Denise Le Gal
participating in the first ever episode of the LGC podcast and offering insights into our investment decision-making process

• Brunel’s Chair Denise Le Gal, CIO Mark Mansley and CRIO Faith Ward had speaking engagements at the LGC Investment Summit at Celtic
Manor from 5-6 September 2019, discussing the investment opportunities and challenges ahead

• Following the start of its Global Small Cap pre-search and registration process in July, Brunel has launched its call for expressions of interest from
exceptional asset managers

Gloucestershire County Council

Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Forging better futures
Information Classification: Public

Page 3 of 35

P
age 23



Executive Summary

High Level Performance
b

The Fund delivered 2% on an absolute basis over Q3 2019. However, the Fund underperformed by 0.6%
against its target benchmark on a relative basis. The absolute return over the one-year period is 5.6%,
underperforming on a one-year basis by -1.1%.
b

The key driver of positive performance this quarter was the Fund’s position in Brunel’s passive products.
The 22.5% position contributed 0.9% to absolute return and all products performed in line with their
respective benchmarks. Notably, the passive smart beta product provided an absolute return of 5.1%,
outperforming the MSCI World index by 1.1% and contributing 0.5% to absolute performance. It is also of
note that the passive MSCI low carbon product returned 4.3% over the quarter, outperforming the global
index by 0.3%.
b

The Fund’s position in BlackRock global equity returned 2.4% over the quarter. This 20% exposure
contributed 0.5% to the absolute performance. However, this holding underperformed its benchmark by
-1.3%, which contributed -0.2% to the quarterly relative underperformance.
b

Fixed income funds also contributed positively to performance, collectively contributing 0.5% to absolute
performance. Notably, the western asset management global fund returned 3.5%. Although absolute
performance was positive, both fixed income funds underperformed their respective benchmarks and
contributed a combined -0.2% to relative underperformance.
b

Key Points:
• 2.0% Absolute Net Performance Q3
• -0.6% Relative Net underperformance versus Benchmark Q3
• 5.6% Absolute Net Performance 1Y
• -1.1% Relative Net Underperformance vs Benchmark 1Y
b

Fund Specific Events - New Commitments to Private Market Portfolios:
b

Private Equity
Neuberger Berman Private Equity Impact Fund - Top up ($6m)
Neuberger Berman Strategic Co-investment Partners IV – New ($12m)
b

Infrastructure
NTR Fund II – Top up (€1.1m)

Total
(GBPm)

 30 Jun 2019 2,475

 30 Sep 2019 2,530

 Net cash inflow (outflow) 6

Total Fund Valuation

Jun Sep
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Assets Transitioned to Brunel

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 4 of 35

P
age 24



Market Summary – Chief Investment Officer

TED Spread

10-2yr Yield SpreadsFixed Income

Q3 2019 was characterised by strong returns across all areas of fixed income, which was in line with
observations from the previous two quarters. Positive returns have been fuelled by stagnant inflation
expectations, slowing global growth and an increasing shift towards looser monetary policy in major
economies.

The best performing asset class in fixed income over the quarter was UK Inflation Linked Bonds, which
returned an impressive +8.2% in local terms. The lowest performing asset class in fixed income was
European High Yield, which returned +0.9% in local terms over the quarter. UK Gilts also posted impressive
returns during Q3, appreciating by +6.6%. UK Inflation Linked Bonds were also the highest performing sub-
asset class on a year-to-date basis; total returns have been +16.8% in local terms following a further
reduction in real yields.

- UK Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) shifted downwards over the last quarter. The headline UK CPI was
1.7% in September, down roughly 0.3% from the previous quarter. This modest downward trend also
occurred across the major economies in the Eurozone. CPI expectations remain fairly stable in the UK,
despite concerns over Brexit. Market-based median CPI estimates are now 1.8%, 2.0% and 2.0% for 2019,
2020 and 2021 respectively. This is broadly in line with the Bank of England’s long-term CPI target of 2%

- The trend in flattening yield curves continued over the last quarter. This was most prominent in the UK
and US, where the 10-2yr yield spreads turned negative during Q3. 10-2yr spreads rebounded by the end
of September but still remain at almost flat levels. The UK and US 10-year yields have fallen considerably
in absolute terms over the quarter; yields fell by 49 & 32bps respectively. UK 10-year yields touched an all-
time low during the quarter following concerns over Brexit and slowing global growth; yields went as low
as +0.37% in August

- The UK government announced changes to the way UK inflation is calculated. UK chancellor Sajid
Javid outlined plans to reform the retail price index (RPI) by 2030 to correct well publicised calculation
flaws. RPI-linked government bonds subsequently experienced volatility, with the price of some issues
falling as much as 10%. Despite this, real yields on longer dated issues (>25 year) continued to fall over
the quarter; yields were as low as -2.1% at quarter end

- The ‘TED Spread’ in the US has been increasing over the last two quarters. It is now +30bps. TED spreads
show the difference between 3-month LIBOR and 3-Month US T-Bill rates. The spread number represents

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 5 of 35

P
age 25



Market Summary – Chief Investment Officer

Real Yields – Long Dated
UK Index Linked

the level of credit risk in an economy. Spreads typically rise during periods of economic crisis

UK Index Linked Tickers - FactSet
G4527HBM Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 10-AUG-2048
G4527HDE Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 22-MAR-2046
G4527HDB Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 22-MAR-2058
G4527HCW Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 22-MAR-2068
G92445ER Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 22-NOV-2056
G92445CR Government of United Kingdom 0.125% 22-NOV-2065
G4527HCL Government of United Kingdom 0.25% 22-MAR-2052
G92451HG Government of United Kingdom 0.375% 22-MAR-2062
G9245027 Government of United Kingdom 0.5% 22-MAR-2050
G92444AP Government of United Kingdom 0.75% 22-NOV-2047
G92450WC Government of United Kingdom 1.25% 22-NOV-2055

Yield Tickers - FactSet
- TRYGB2Y-FDS – UK 2yr Generic Yield
- TRYGB10Y-FDS – UK 10yr Generic Yield
- TRYUS2Y-FDS – US 2yr Generic Yield
- TRYUS10Y-FDS – US 10yr Generic Yield
- TRYDE2Y-FDS – Germany 2yr Generic Yield
- TRYDE10Y-FDS – Germany 10yr Generic Yield
- TRYFR2Y-FDS – France 2yr Generic Yield
- TRYFR10Y-FDS – France 10yr Generic Yield

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 6 of 35

P
age 26



Market Summary – Chief Investment Officer

5 Year price of Gold (NYM $/ozt)

Global indices 1 Year ReturnsEquities

The MSCI AC World returned 3.4% over the quarter, adding to positive returns from the previous quarters,
leaving global equity markets with a return of 20.6% year to date (YTD). This positive return comes despite
slowing global growth as global trade declined and European manufacturing suffered its steepest
downturn in seven years.

In US equities, the S&P 500 returned 1.7% over the quarter, returning 20.5% YTD in dollar terms. The Federal
reserve cut its policy rate over the quarter to 2% in an attempt to stimulate growth and counter the
effects of the continuing trade war.

• Rising stock prices pushed US equity valuations higher than their historical averages over the quarter.
This has been largely underpinned by low bond yields and decreasing interest rates
• The trade war continues to fuel risk in the US. New tariffs were imposed on more than $112 billion in
September and a further increase scheduled for October has left business owners with a high degree of
uncertainty. This has led to a slowdown in investment in factories and other businesses as they are
uncertain if they can sell their products with a notable decline in US exports
• US earning growth continued to decelerate over the quarter as estimates for 2019 EPS growth in the US
now stands at 1.5%, down from the 3% estimate at the end of Q2.

Emerging Markets declined over the quarter by -1%, returning 10% YTD.
• Emerging markets were down over the quarter as the previously mentioned US-China trade tensions
escalated
• China is a major swing factor in Emerging markets. With a weighting of 32%, it returned -1.54% over the
quarter and contributed 0.5% to the decline
• Those countries within emerging markets that have a high sensitivity to the USD also underperformed
over the quarter as the dollar strengthened. Notably, South Africa returned -8.2%
• Argentina was the largest underperforming country. A primary election led to a sell-off of Argentine
assets, and returned -45% for the quarter
• In contrast, Taiwan returned 9.3% over the quarter, largely due to their large tech sector, which makes
up over 50% of their market

European markets ex UK returned 1.7% over Q3, 19.9% YTD.
• As mentioned above, Europe’s manufacturing activity has shrunk to its lowest levels since October
2012. This was led largely by Germany, which slumped to its lowest levels since 2009. These stem partly
from the fact that Chinese companies facing tariffs on exports to the US are decreasing their purchases

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 7 of 35

P
age 27



Market Summary – Chief Investment Officer

of German-made machinery
• Shares, however, provided a positive return this quarter, largely due to the defensive sectors of Utilities,
Consumer Staples and Healthcare

FTSE All share returned 1.3% over the quarter, providing a YTD return of 14.41%.
• A new prime minister and further uncertainty about the UK’s ability to leave the EU on 31 October with
a deal led investors once again to favour more defensive sectors such as Healthcare and Utilities,
leading the FTSE All share positive gain
• Economically sensitive sectors such as Financials and Materials underperformed
• Growth indicators in the UK point towards a loss of momentum as Q2 GDP was confirmed at -0.2%
• Business investment in the UK grew at a rate of 1.1% per quarter during the year before June 2016.
Between Q2 2018 and Q2 2019, business investment is estimated to have fallen by 1.49%

Gold returned 4.19% Q3, 14.95% YTD.
• The continued drop in bond yields and the slowdown in global growth has led investors to favour less
risky assets such as Gold, which saw its price climb to highs of $1560/ozt, its highest since 2013
• Oil prices fell over the quarter, with Brent Crude returning -8.5%. However, a drone attack on a Saudi
Arabia Oil processing facility in September knocked 5% off global oil production immediately, leading to
the biggest intra day rise since 1988. This was subsequently corrected by quarter end

Sterling returns for indices:
- FTSE All-Share: 1.3% (3m) 2.7% (12m)
- MSCI Europe: 1.5% (3m) 5.7% (12m)
- MSCI Europe ex UK: 1.7% (3m) 6.8% (12m)
- MSCI ACWI: 3.4% (3m) 7.9% (12m)
- MSCI ACWI ex USA: 1.5% (3m) 5.1% (12m)
- MSCI Emerging: -1% (3m) 4.1% (12m)
- MSCI China: -1.6% (3m) 1.8% (12m)
- S&P 500: 5.0% (3m) 10.3% (12m)
- GBP Vs USD: -3.2% (3M) -5.5% (12M)

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 8 of 35

P
age 28



Market Summary – Head of Private Markets

Overview
As we move into the final quarter of 2019, the challenges faced throughout the year are persistent. US-
China trade tensions and the uncertainty of the Brexit outcome are, for many, foreshadowing a global
recession. With these macroeconomic factors impacting a range of investment markets, successfully
navigating the market is getting harder.

Early indications of Client commitments for Cycle 2 suggest more money across all the Private Market
portfolios, especially to secured income and to private debt where in excess of £300m has already been
communicated. There is a minimum efficient scale to operating the PM Portfolios and for the team to
realistically be able to negotiate better terms with managers on your behalf. Client cohesion,
compromise and buy-in to the Brunel Portfolio offerings is fundamental to the success of our Pool and we
have appreciated the very constructive discussions during the Cycle 2 Portfolio Scoping stages as Clients
see what the team has already delivered during Cycle 1.

Infrastructure
Fundraising activity has significantly slowed down from 2018. Between Q1 and Q3 2019, unlisted
infrastructure funds have secured just 40% of the capital raised in the same time period in 2018. However,
managers’ ability to deploy has not been affected, as during Q3 2019, 593 infrastructure transactions
were completed for an aggregate value of $88bn. Investment levels are almost identical to Q3 2018,
when 592 deals were completed for a total of $93bn.

The geographic focus for managers has shifted slightly, moving from traditional developed to emerging
economies. The number of infrastructure transactions in Asia increased from 69 in Q3 2018 to 104 in Q3
2019, whereas North American deals declined by 23% over the same period, falling from 198 to 158.

Investors continue to view the renewable sector as offering lower political risk, and a higher income
yield, although this reflects the greater revenue variability from power price exposure. It remains the
largest sector in the market, accounting for 51% of all completed deals in Q3 2019. Nevertheless, other
industries are on the rise. The total number of transport deals surpassed energy deals for the first time
since Q2 2016 (84 versus 74 respectively), while the number of telecoms deals nearly doubled from 22 to
40 between Q3 2018 and Q3 2019.

The Capital Dynamics Clean Energy funds remain on track with their fundraising and deployment of
capital. The UK and Europe fund is just under 50% funded and has an extensive investment pipeline of
exclusive wind and solar projects. A first deal was signed in August: Project Keane – a portfolio of

Vauban investment VSFP (Mestre Hospital)

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 9 of 35

P
age 29



Market Summary – Head of Private Markets

operational wind farms in Northern Ireland. The US fund has committed 49% of the $1.4bn total and has
c$600m of high probability transactions in the next 6-12 months (taking it to fully committed).

The fundraising for NTR Renewable slowed down in Q2-Q3 2019, but there is expectation a new German
investor will commit €50m in Q4 2019 and there has been positive progress with other pools and LGPS
investors. Deployment has progressed with an imminent transaction expected post quarter end, taking
deployment to c40% of target fund size.

The Core infrastructure fund expects to be fully invested by year end. The Core infrastructure team has
successfully spun-off from Mirova to become “Vauban”, although it remains under the Natixis umbrella.

No new fund commitments were made in the quarter ending 30 September, but considerable work was
done to progress the selection of a manager to source coinvest and secondary transactions for Brunel
and to jointly select primaries with the PM team. This will be done through a bespoke vehicle, built
exclusively for Brunel, and will not only be used to deploy the remaining capital for Cycle 1, but also to
manage new commitments to the infrastructure portfolio for future cycles. This will be hugely beneficial
for all concerned.

Brunel therefore remains on track to build a nicely diversified Cycle 1 infrastructure portfolio for Clients,
consisting of eight to nine primary funds plus coinvests and secondaries through this bespoke vehicle,
adding four to five further primary funds to the four fund commitments Brunel has already made
(covering sustainable infrastructure across telecoms, transport, energy infrastructure and renewable
power generation) as well as 10 to 15 co-investment deals across geographies and sectors, all with an
emphasis on sustainability by mitigating and creating resilience to climate change and other
systemically important challenges.

Private Equity
Investors continue to turn to private equity (PE), which has proven its ability to provide protection in times
of market downturn. Fundraising remains robust in terms of capital secured. Private equity funds have
secured $417bn in the first three quarters in 2019, up from $345bn over the same period in 2018.

Performance over the long term is strong and the private equity model has shown its worth in
withstanding market cycles. While activity is not currently matching the record highs seen in recent years,
investors continue to allocate to the asset class in search of long-term value creation.

The latest statistics on secondary transactions reflect how the market has evolved, with the buying and

Cycle 1 Private Equity GP Names

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 10 of 35

P
age 30



Market Summary – Head of Private Markets

selling of assets before the end of a PE fund’s agreed term running at record levels. In addition to
traditional fund buyers of secondary private equity stakes, pension funds and large family offices are
increasingly competing for transactions, driving up prices. Investors are increasingly drawn to the very
favourable characteristics of secondaries, as Brunel outlined in its Cycle 2 PE Portfolio Scoping Paper.

The Neuberger Berman (NB) Private Equity Impact Fund is making good progress investing and has now
committed to three primary funds and three co-investments. They are finding good prospects in the
Healthcare, financial services and education sectors which align well with the impact aspirations of the
fund. They have also now put a credit line in place which will aid managing capital calls for the fund
and smooth the drawdown process with clients.

The NB Strategic Co-Investment Partners Fund IV had its first close in early September at $1bn, with a
further $600m in advanced due diligence with rolling closes over subsequent quarters. The fund should
start to deploy in early November as Fund III finishes deploying.

The Capital Dynamics Global Secondaries Fund V has raised $401m so far and has closed 12
transactions, with a further two deals in execution, for a total amount of US$272m. The early transactions
are well diversified by geography, vintage year, deal type and complexity, and consist of a portfolio of
over 100 funds run by many highly sought-after managers across buyout, growth and venture.

The PM team are pleased with the way the PE Portfolio is shaping up with a likely composition of 43%
Primary, 20% Secondary, 37% Coinvest by the time all capital has been committed at the end of Q1
2020.

Secured Income
The lower level of transactional activity in the UK property market over the first half of 2019, down 33% on
last year’s levels, has impacted the pace of investor drawdowns for both long-lease property funds held
by Brunel’s clients in the secured income portfolio. Both M&G and ASI have a significant pipeline of
deals, and one large transaction is expected from each fund imminently.

Greencoat Renewable Income Fund (GRI) has now been selected by Brunel as the final fund for Client
commitments to secured income in this cycle. This Portfolio is now fully committed. GRI will acquire
primarily UK-based operational assets in the solar, bioenergy and wind sectors, and more opportunistic
environmental infrastructure sectors, with the objective of generating predictable income with inflation
protection over a long-term horizon. Greencoat is a specialist investor dedicated to low carbon energy
investing, with assets under management of £4bn. Fund returns will be driven by contracted, inflation-
linked (RPI or CPI), long-term income streams, including 15-20 year UK government renewable

Greencoat Capital
Illustrative Image of Similar Giant Greenhouse

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 11 of 35

P
age 31



Market Summary – Head of Private Markets

subsidies/support mechanisms. 30% of the commitment is reserved for Solar II, a portfolio of 64 solar
assets.

Property
In the UK, annual commercial property returns are forecast to deliver negative total returns of around -2%
for 2019 (the first negative total return since 2008), with modest positive performance returning in 2020.
The retail sector will be hardest hit, with average capital values falling by over 15% and some shopping
centre assets anticipated to lose over 30% of their value in the next 12 months.

Over the next five years, annualised total returns for all UK commercial property range between +2.5%
and +4% and equivalent yields (now at 5.5%) are already moving out to reflect future stagnant and
falling rental returns from some sectors.

There was a mild rebound in investment activity in the third quarter, concentrated on the Alternatives
sector, in particular student housing and the private rented sector (PRS). The largest deal so far this year
has been Unite’s purchase of the Liberty Living student housing portfolio for £1.4bn at an initial yield of
5.3%.

Internationally, similar themes of retail weakness and continued strength in logistics, where rental growth
is now moderating, have led managers to focus on defensive locations in the US, Europe and Asia.
Transactional activity has slowed in most regions, though from a high level in mature Asian markets.
Investor attention is directed towards secondary cities in the US, major business centres in Europe and the
office sector in Australia.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 12 of 35

P
age 32



Responsible Investment & Stewardship Review

World on Fire – Climate change and supply chain
September saw significant deforestation and fires in the Amazon. A recent report from the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), highlights the close links between unsustainable
land use and climate change. With CO2 emissions rising and biodiversity declining faster than at any
other time in human history, the report underlines the urgency in promoting sustainable land
management to halt biodiversity loss, enhance food security and meet the goals of the Paris
Agreement.

Brunel signed the Investor statement on deforestation and forest fires in the Amazon, which has to date
been endorsed by 244 investors representing approximately US $17.2 trillion in assets. The statement
urgently requests companies to redouble their efforts and demonstrate clear commitment to eliminating
deforestation within their operations and supply chains, including by:
1. Publicly disclosing and implementing a commodity-specific no deforestation policy with quantifiable,
time-bound commitments covering the entire supply chain and sourcing geographies
2. Assessing operations and supply chains for deforestation risk, and reduce this risk to the lowest possible
level, disclosing this information to the public
3. Establishing a transparent monitoring and verification system for supplier compliance with the
company’s no deforestation policy
4. Reporting annually on deforestation risk exposure and management, including progress towards the
company’s no deforestation policy

Hermes EOS have also supported the investor statement, and recently published an EOS Insights article,
Playing With Fire which looks at companies exposed to deforestation – directly or indirectly through their
supply chains – and the investor response.

Plastic and the Circular Economy – Supply chain
Brunel as a member of the PRI Plastic Working Group (PWG) supported a PRI-in-person roundtable,
where four companies in the plastic value chain discussed the opportunities and challenges of plastic.
The PWG recently published its first two reports, Plastics: the challenges and possible solutions, and risks
and opportunities along the plastics value chain. Further updates will be shared as work progresses.
Brunel last year supported a letter on development of pellet-loss-free plastic supply chains and endorsed
the Ellen MacArthur New plastics economy global commitment.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 13 of 35

P
age 33

https://www.ipcc.ch/report/srccl/
https://www.unpri.org/Uploads/h/w/p/investorstatementondeforestationandforestfiresintheamazon_1oct2019_825656.pdf
https://www.hermes-investment.com/uki/eos-insight/eos/playing-with-fire/
https://www.unpri.org/plastics/plastics-the-challenges-and-possible-solutions/4773.article
https://www.unpri.org/plastics/risks-and-opportunities-along-the-plastics-value-chain/4774.article?adredir=1
https://www.unpri.org/plastics/risks-and-opportunities-along-the-plastics-value-chain/4774.article?adredir=1
https://www.newplasticseconomy.org/assets/doc/Global-Commitment-Signatories-June-2019.pdf


Responsible Investment & Stewardship Review

UK Regulation & Policy – Quality and Effectiveness of Audit
Sir Donald Brydon was appointed to conduct an independent review into the quality and effectiveness
of audit. On 27 June 2019, Sir Donald Brydon and Miranda Craig visited Brunel as part of their research for
the review. We discussed a range of issues and flagged concerns about quality of the audit process and
the confidence, or lack thereof, it provides in financial accounts. We emphasised the importance of
both quality and confidence to us as investors. We welcomed the proposals for shareholder
engagement by the audit committees and more nuanced and informative audit findings. However, we
also noted the role (and current competence) of auditors in assessing a company’s approach to
material emerging risks such as cyber and climate change. We look forward to reviewing the report,
which is expected at the end of 2019.

Climate change – Energy transition
The Transition Pathway Initiative, co-chaired by Faith Ward, recently released its latest assessment of the
world&apos;s top energy companies. Offering updated analysis of the sector and with coverage
expanded to 135 of the world’s highest emitting public coal mining, electricity, and oil and gas
companies, it also included a comprehensive assessment of the Carbon Performance of oil and gas
producers for the first time. Key findings (see charts overleaf) include:

• Just four energy companies are on Level 0 Management Quality (unaware of or not acknowledging
climate change as a business issue)
• Close to 60% of energy companies are on Level 3 – integrating climate change into operational
decision-making – or Level 4 – strategic assessment of climate change
• On average, the sector is just over halfway between Level 2 and 3
• Electricity utilities perform best, while oil and gas producers are in line with the energy-sector average
• Currently, coal mining is the worst performing sector in the TPI database. Within that sector we see a
divergence between the leaders (clustered on Levels 3 and 4), and the laggards (stuck on Levels 0 and
1), with the leaders tending to be diversified and large-cap. companies

Brunel’s use of TPI to inform its investment decisions and voting was featured in September’s Funds
Europe ESG Report – The time for climate action is now.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 14 of 35

P
age 34

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-quality-and-effectiveness-of-audit-independent-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-quality-and-effectiveness-of-audit-independent-review
http://www.lse.ac.uk/GranthamInstitute/tpi/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Management-quality-and-carbon-performance-of-energy-sectors-final-180919.pdf
http://www.funds-europe.com/esg-report-2019/inside-view-the-time-for-climate-action-is-now


Responsible Investment & Stewardship Review

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 15 of 35

P
age 35



High Level Performance of Pension Fund

Fund Strategic BM Excess

3 Month 1.98 2.64 -0.65

Fiscal YTD 6.12 6.31 -0.20

1 Year 5.55 6.72 -1.16

3 Years 8.13 7.75 0.38

5 Years 8.83 9.52 -0.69

10 Years 9.15 9.42 -0.28

Since Inception 7.75 8.28 -0.53

Performance of Fund Against Benchmark Rolling Quarters Total Fund Net of Mgr. Fees

Fund Benchmark Fund Cum. Benchmark Cum.

Q
4 2

017

Q
1 2

018

Q
2 2

018

Q
3 2

018

Q
4 2

018

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

-8.0%

-4.0%

0.0%

4.0%

8.0%

12.0%

16.0%

Key Drivers of Negative & Positive Performance

Over the reporting period the Fund delivered positive absolute performance, but underperformed on a relative basis. The key contributors to positive
performance over the period were:

• 20% exposure to BlackRock global equity contributed 0.5% to Fund performance. BlackRock global equity returned 2.3% on a total return basis, however
underperformed its target benchmark by -1.3%, contributing 0.2% to relative performance

• Brunel’s global passive products contributed 0.9% to absolute performance and all performed in line with their intended benchmarks. Notably, the MSCI low
carbon and the smart beta portfolio returned 4.3% and 5.1% respectively. In relative terms, both products outperformed the standard market cap weighted
global index, which returned 4% over Q3

• The Brunel UK equity portfolio provided a total return 0.3% and underperformed the FTSE All share by 1%. This underperformance was largely due to market
rotation from economically sensitive sectors such as tech and financials into defensive style securities

• Political uncertainty surrounding the China-US trade negotiations continued to effect emerging markets this quarter, resulting in the index returning -1.1%.
The position in BlackRock emerging markets fund slightly underperformed over the quarter, returning -1.2%

• The 22% exposure to fixed income WAMCO products contributed a positive 0.5% to absolute Fund performance. The global fixed interest position returned

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 16 of 35

P
age 36



High Level Performance of Pension Fund

3.5%. However, this failed to outperform its target benchmark, contributing -0.2% to relative underperformance

• Private debt funds provided positive returns over the quarter, with both funds outperforming their LIBOR +5% target benchmarks. Notably, the Golub fund
outperformed the index by 3.7%. These positions contributed 0.1% to absolute return

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 17 of 35

P
age 37



Asset Allocation of Pension Fund

Others, 3.7

Passive Low Carbon 
Equities, 2.2

CBREI, 2.5

Aberdeen GARS, 3.2

Brunel PasDevEq-
Hdgd, 5.2

Brunel PasDevEquities, 
5.6

Hermes, 5.6

Blackrock EM, 5.7

WAMCO GMS, 7.5

Passive Smart Beta, 9.6

Blackrock GE, 19.7

Brunel UK Active 
Equity, 15.0

WAMCO, 14.4

Asset Allocation Split

-3.0% -2.0% -1.0% 0.0% 1.0% 2.0%

Aberdeen GARS
Blackrock EM
Blackrock GE

Bluebay
Brunel - PM Infrastructure
Brunel - PM Private Equity

Brunel UK Active Equity
CBREI
Cash

Golub
Hermes

Passive Developed Equities
Passive Developed Equiti...

Passive Low Carbon Equities
Passive Smart Beta

WAMCO
WAMCO GMS
Yorkshire FM

Allocation Against Strategic Benchmark

The Fund has overweight positions to UK active equity and BlackRock emerging markets. These are complemented by an underweight position in
WAMCO global fixed interest.

• The slight overweight position in BlackRock global equity contributed to a positive asset allocation as the index returned 3.7% over the quarter,
outperforming the total composite benchmark

• The underweight position in WAMCO fixed interest contributed to a negative asset allocation as the WAMCO benchmark outperformed the total
benchmark. The WAMCO fixed interest fund also underperformed the benchmark and contributed -0.2% to relative underperformance

• Overweight positions in the Brunel UK activity fund also contributed to negative asset allocation as the UK equity market underperformed the global
equity benchmark. This position contributed 0.1% to relative underperformance

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 18 of 35

P
age 38



High Level Performance of Pension Fund – Risk Summary

Total Return Benchm. Return

Brunel UK Active Equity 9.64% 10.82%

Passive Developed Equities 9.23% 9.27%

Passive Developed Equities (Hedged) 3.32% 3.37%

Passive Low Carbon Equities 10.00% 10.13%

Passive Smart Beta 10.46% 10.70%

Brunel - PM Infrastructure -4.07% 1.31%

Brunel - PM Private Equity 43.18% 12.56%

Manager Level Performance (Transitioned) – Since Inception

Ann. Return Standard
Deviation

Benchm.
Return

Benchm. Std.
Dev.

Aberdeen GARS 1.85% 3.64% 5.78% 0.09%
Aberdeen Inv. 2.49% 8.05% 6.76% 9.84%
Blackrock EM 7.95% 12.41% 7.85% 12.44%
Blackrock GE 12.91% 10.14% 11.65% 10.03%
CBREI 6.62% 2.49% 7.22% 2.54%
Hermes 7.95% 1.90% 7.20% 2.59%
WAMCO 2.57% 5.51% 2.66% 5.97%
WAMCO GMS 2.98% 4.13% 2.62% 0.07%
Gloucestershire County Council 8.13% 6.52% 7.75% 6.20%

Manager Level Performance (Pre-Transition) – 3 Year

Over the three-year reporting period, the Fund delivered positive absolute performance on an annual basis and outperformed the benchmark by 0.4%
on a relative basis.

Key highlights of performance over the period:

• BlackRock emerging markets and BlackRock global equity have provided 7.95% and 12.91% absolute returns respectively. Both funds outperformed
their benchmarks on an absolute basis as well as on a risk-adjusted basis if we consider a simple return per unit of risk metric

• As expected, the passive Brunel portfolios have performed in line with their benchmarks since their inception in mid-2018. It is worth noting the large
disparity in returns between the developed and developed (hedged) classes, which reflects the negative performance of sterling since inception

• Hermes Property has provided an absolute return of 7.9%, outperforming its target benchmark by 0.7% on a three-year annualised basis, while
exhibiting a lower volatility than its benchmark

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 19 of 35

P
age 39



Brunel Portfolios Overview

Portfolio Benchmark AUM
(GBPm)

Perf.
3 Month

Excess
3 Month

Perf.
1 Year

Excess
1 Year

Perf.
3 Year

Excess
3 Year

Perf.
5 Year

Excess
5 Year

Perf.
SI

Excess
SI

Inception
Date

Brunel UK Active Equity FTSE All Share 378 0.29% -0.98% 9.64% -1.18% 21 Nov 2018

Passive Developed
Equities

FTSE World
Developed 141 3.92% -0.01% 7.94% 0.02% 9.23% -0.04% 18 Jul 2018

Passive Developed
Equities (Hedged)

FTSE World
Developed Hedged 131 1.46% -0.00% 1.65% 0.03% 3.32% -0.05% 18 Jul 2018

Passive Low Carbon
Equities

MSCI Low Carbon
Target 57 4.28% 0.00% 8.98% -0.04% 10.00% -0.13% 18 Jul 2018

Passive Smart Beta SciBeta Multifactor
Composite 243 5.10% -0.02% 11.10% -0.28% 10.46% -0.25% 31 Jul 2018

Brunel - PM Infrastructure Consumer Price
Index 5 -0.28% -0.84% -4.07% -5.38% 02 Jan 2019

Brunel - PM Private Equity MSCI AC World Index 3 20.05% 16.67% 43.18% 30.61% 26 Mar 2019

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 20 of 35

P
age 40



Passive Developed Equities

Description

Provide exposure to FTSE
Developed World using a low cost
highly liquid approach.

Geographically diversified range
of equities.

This portfolio is seen to be highly
liquid.

This portfolio is seen to be highly
risk mandate.

Overview

 Portfolio
 Objective:

 Liquidity:

 Investment
 Strategy &
 Key

Risk/
Volatility:

Holding: £141,121,308

All values in % Fund BM Excess

 3 Month 3.92 3.92 -0.01

 Fiscal YTD 10.69 0.00 10.69

 1 Year 7.94 7.91 0.02

 3 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 5 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 10 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Since Inception 9.23 9.27 -0.04

Quarterly performance Rolling Performance

Fund Benchmark Benchmark Cum. Fund Cum.

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

18.0%

20.0%

22.0%

Following on from the positive returns in previous quarters, global markets continued to provide strong returns in Q3. The MSCI AC World returned 3.4% over
the quarter, leaving global equity markets with a return of 20.6% year to date. As expected, the passive product performed in line with benchmark.

• The passive developed equities hedged portfolio underperformed the unhedged product by 2.5% due to long exposure to GBP. This is representative of
GBP weakening against USD over the quarter

• Strong performance from the Utilities and Consumer Staples sectors contributed to positive returns over the quarter. Utilities returned 5.7% and Consumer
Staples returned 3.7% over the quarter, on a total return basis

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 21 of 35

P
age 41



Passive Developed Equities (Hedged)

Description

Provide exposure to FTSE
Developed World using a low cost
highly liquid approach.

Geographically diversified range
of equities.

This portfolio is seen to be highly
liquid.

This portfolio is seen to be highly
risk mandate.

Overview

 Portfolio
 Objective:

 Liquidity:

 Investment
 Strategy &
 Key

Risk/
Volatility:

Holding: £130,905,123

All values in % Fund BM Excess

 3 Month 1.46 1.46 0.00

 Fiscal YTD 4.73 0.00 4.73

 1 Year 1.65 1.62 0.03

 3 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 5 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 10 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Since Inception 3.32 3.37 -0.05

Quarterly performance Rolling Performance

Fund Benchmark Benchmark Cum. Fund Cum.

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

0.0%

3.0%

6.0%

9.0%

12.0%

15.0%

18.0%

Following on from the positive returns in previous quarters, global markets continued to provide strong returns in Q3. The MSCI AC World returned 3.4% over
the quarter, leaving global equity markets with a return of 20.6% year to date. As expected, the passive product performed in line with benchmark.

• The passive developed equities hedged portfolio underperformed the unhedged product by 2.5% due to long exposure to GBP. This is representative of
GBP weakening against USD over the quarter

• Strong performance from the Utilities and Consumer Staples sectors contributed to positive returns over the quarter. Utilities returned 5.7% and Consumer
Staples returned 3.7% over the quarter, on a total return basis

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 22 of 35

P
age 42



Passive Developed Equities – Region & Sector Exposure

Mkt. Val.(GBP)

MICROSOFT CORP 66,889,772

APPLE INC 64,469,740

AMAZON.COM INC 45,650,065

FACEBOOK INC-CLASS A 27,063,339

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 23,845,856

ALPHABET INC-CL C 23,560,244

ALPHABET INC-CL A 23,256,042

JOHNSON & JOHNSON 21,864,882

NESTLE SA-REG 19,810,682

PROCTER & GAMBLE CO/THE 19,551,650

VISA INC-CLASS A SHARES 19,016,242

EXXON MOBIL CORP 18,991,808

AT&T INC 17,563,521

HOME DEPOT INC 16,259,742

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC-CL B 16,163,491

VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC 15,872,713

BANK OF AMERICA CORP 15,644,796

MASTERCARD INC - A 15,495,311

INTEL CORP 14,548,527

WALT DISNEY CO/THE 14,455,012

Top 20 Holdings

0% 7% 14% 21% 28% 35% 42% 49% 56% 63% 70%

North America  61.95%

Western Europe  22.87%

East Asia & Pacific  14.68%

Middle East & North Africa    0.23%

Europe & Central Asia    0.15%

Latin America & Caribbean    0.11%

Sub-Saharan Africa    0.01%

Regional Exposure

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20% 22%

Consumer Non-cyclical  21.99%

Financial  19.97%

Technology  12.80%

Communications  11.24%

Industrial  10.56%

Consumer Cyclical  10.03%

Energy    5.10%

Basic Materials    3.83%

Utilities    3.46%

Cash    0.49%

Diversified    0.10%

Sector Exposure

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 23 of 35

P
age 43



Passive Developed Equities – Responsible Investment

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 24 of 35

P
age 44



Passive Low Carbon Equities

Description

Provide exposure to equity returns
and global economy with low
exposure to carbon emissions and
fossil fuels.

Portfolio is invested in global
equities in accordance with Low
Carbon index.

High

Absolute: High Relative: V.Low

Overview

 Portfolio
 Objective:

 Liquidity:

 Investment
 Strategy &
 Key

Risk/
Volatility:

Holding: £56,576,590

All values in % Fund BM Excess

 3 Month 4.28 4.28 0.00

 Fiscal YTD 11.48 0.00 11.48

 1 Year 8.98 9.02 -0.04

 3 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 5 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 10 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Since Inception 10.00 10.13 -0.13

Quarterly performance Rolling Performance

Fund Benchmark Benchmark Cum. Fund Cum.

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

6.0%

9.0%

12.0%

15.0%

18.0%

21.0%

Passive low carbon returned positive performance over the quarter. Performing in line with its MSCI Low Carbon benchmark, the portfolio returned 4.3%.

• The low carbon portfolio benefitted from positive global equity market returns during Q3. As the global equity market has such a large allocation to the US
(around 55%), this region was the largest contributor to positive performance

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 25 of 35

P
age 45



Passive Low Carbon Equities – Region & Sector Exposure

Mkt. Val.(GBP)

APPLE INC 22,576,984

MICROSOFT CORP 21,770,189

AMAZON.COM INC 15,673,782

FACEBOOK INC-CLASS A 9,104,868

ALPHABET INC-CL A 8,227,054

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 8,134,489

ALPHABET INC-CL C 7,716,721

JOHNSON & JOHNSON 7,682,524

PROCTER & GAMBLE CO/THE 7,322,237

NESTLE SA-REG 7,275,866

VISA INC-CLASS A SHARES 6,740,287

AT&T INC 6,103,172

BANK OF AMERICA CORP 5,896,193

HOME DEPOT INC 5,779,244

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC-CL B 5,670,424

VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC 5,639,217

MASTERCARD INC - A 5,323,502

INTEL CORP 5,321,276

COCA-COLA CO/THE 5,242,835

WALT DISNEY CO/THE 5,162,203

Top 20 Holdings

0% 7% 14% 21% 28% 35% 42% 49% 56% 63% 70%

North America  65.23%

Western Europe  21.98%

East Asia & Pacific  12.40%

Middle East & North Africa    0.19%

Latin America & Caribbean    0.18%

Sub-Saharan Africa    0.02%

Regional Exposure

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20% 22% 24%

Consumer Non-cyclical  23.46%

Financial  21.48%

Technology  13.21%

Communications  12.02%

Consumer Cyclical  11.02%

Industrial  10.81%

Energy    4.04%

Basic Materials    3.30%

Utilities    3.16%

Diversified    0.10%

Sector Exposure

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 26 of 35

P
age 46



Passive Low Carbon Equities – Responsible Investment

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 27 of 35

P
age 47



Passive Smart Beta

Description

Exposure to equity markets and a
combination of smart beta factors
to outperform market cap indices.

Invest passively in equities via
alternative indices.

High

Absolute: High Relative: V.Low

Overview

 Portfolio
 Objective:

 Liquidity:

 Investment
 Strategy &
 Key

Risk/
Volatility:

Holding: £243,494,974

All values in % Fund BM Excess

 3 Month 5.10 5.12 -0.02

 Fiscal YTD 11.71 0.00 11.71

 1 Year 11.10 11.38 -0.28

 3 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 5 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 10 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Since Inception 10.46 10.70 -0.25

Quarterly performance Rolling Performance

Fund Benchmark Benchmark Cum. Fund Cum.

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

6.0%

9.0%

12.0%

15.0%

18.0%

21.0%

Passive smart beta is a factor-based portfolio that aims to exploit value, quality and low volatility in a multifactor approach. During the screening process,
momentum and size factors are also considered. The fund is constructed by individual regions. The weights of the regions are in line with MSCI World Index.

• The smart beta portfolio returned 4.9% over the quarter, which was in line with the benchmark. It should be noted that global equities exhibited positive
performance over the quarter, with the MSCI AC World index returning 3.4%

• The smart beta hedged portfolio underperformed the unhedged portfolio due to the long sterling exposure. The hedged portfolio underperformed the
unhedged product by 2.3%, due to the weakening of GBP relative to USD.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 28 of 35

P
age 48



Passive Smart Beta – Region & Sector Exposure

Mkt. Val.(GBP)

ALLSTATE CORP 6,976,970

HARTFORD FINANCIAL SVCS GRP 6,660,891

WALMART INC 6,581,395

DUKE ENERGY CORP 6,413,933

TRAVELERS COS INC/THE 6,349,296

SOUTHERN CO/THE 6,302,157

SYNOPSYS INC 6,196,956

DANAHER CORP 6,164,502

INGERSOLL-RAND PLC 6,137,466

AMERICAN ELECTRIC POWER 6,062,372

CHUBB LTD 6,025,955

FIRSTENERGY CORP 5,992,868

CONSOLIDATED EDISON INC 5,966,092

EXXON MOBIL CORP 5,903,834

EXELON CORP 5,881,540

ENTERGY CORP 5,774,098

PHILLIPS 66 5,741,377

MEDTRONIC PLC 5,714,909

WALT DISNEY CO/THE 5,683,780

MONDELEZ INTERNATIONAL INC-A 5,672,589

Top 20 Holdings

0% 7% 14% 21% 28% 35% 42% 49% 56% 63% 70%

North America  62.98%

Western Europe  22.93%

East Asia & Pacific  13.26%

Middle East & North Africa    0.83%

Regional Exposure

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20% 22%

Financial  20.82%

Consumer Non-cyclical  19.64%

Industrial  11.31%

Consumer Cyclical  11.14%

Utilities  10.73%

Technology    9.15%

Communications    7.72%

Basic Materials    4.96%

Energy    4.18%

Cash    0.20%

Diversified    0.15%

Sector Exposure

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 29 of 35

P
age 49



Passive Smart Beta – Responsible Investment

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 30 of 35

P
age 50



Brunel UK Active Equity

Description

Provide exposure to UK Equities,
together with enhanced returns
from manager skill.

Skilled managers will create
opportunities to add long term
value through stock selection and
portfolio construction.

Managed level of liquidity. Less
exposure to more illiquid assets.

High absolute risk with moderate
relative risk, around 4% tracking
error.

Overview

 Portfolio
 Objective:

 Liquidity:

 Investment
 Strategy &
 Key

Risk/
Volatility:

Holding: £378,367,494

All values in % Fund BM Excess

 3 Month 0.29 1.27 -0.98

 Fiscal YTD 3.44 0.00 3.44

 1 Year 0.00 0.00 0.00

 3 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 5 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 10 Years 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Since Inception 9.64 10.82 -1.18

Quarterly performance Rolling Performance

Fund Benchmark Benchmark Cum. Fund Cum.

Q
1 2

019

Q
2 2

019

Q
3 2

019

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

The FTSE All share index underperformed global developed markets during the quarter, posting a return of 1.3% over the quarter and 14.4% year to date.
During the quarter, a new prime minister, Brexit uncertainty, and weak growth indicators all led investors once again to favour more defensive sectors such
as Healthcare and Utilities, while economically sensitive sectors such as Financials and Materials underperformed.

Over the quarter, the portfolio has underperformed the FTSE All share by -0.98%, returning 0.29% versus the FTSE All share return of 1.27%. Manager relative
performance struggled over the quarter with all three managers underperforming the benchmark in a market environment dominated by market rotations
and macro factors. ASI, Baillie Gifford and Invesco underperformed by -0.34%, -1.56% and -0.86 respectively.

Since inception on 21 November 2018, the portfolio has returned 9.59%, an underperformance of -1.23% versus the FTSE All share over the same period.
Underperformance was largely driven by a significant underperformance from ASI versus the FTSE All share of -4.28% and, to lesser extent, Invesco (-0.78%),
which more than offset outperformance by Baillie Gifford (+1.74%).

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 31 of 35

P
age 51



Active UK Equities – Region & Sector Exposure

Mkt. Val.(GBP)

ROYAL DUTCH SHELL PLC-B SHS 70,879,998

GLAXOSMITHKLINE PLC 61,808,475

BP PLC 58,774,411

HSBC HOLDINGS PLC 51,813,875

UNILEVER PLC 50,823,609

RIO TINTO PLC 49,674,353

BHP GROUP PLC 48,031,849

RELX PLC 47,469,370

BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO PLC 46,593,203

DIAGEO PLC 43,864,512

ROYAL DUTCH SHELL PLC-A SHS 37,612,954

PRUDENTIAL PLC 35,788,895

ASTRAZENECA PLC 32,680,315

LEGAL & GENERAL GROUP PLC 27,893,249

LLOYDS BANKING GROUP PLC 24,162,524

MEGGITT PLC 23,050,484

RIGHTMOVE PLC 22,083,950

STANDARD CHARTERED PLC 21,196,745

AUTO TRADER GROUP PLC 20,796,900

HIKMA PHARMACEUTICALS PLC 20,496,401

Top 20 Holdings

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Western Europe  94.81%

East Asia & Pacific    2.91%

Middle East & North Africa    1.39%

North America    0.58%

Europe & Central Asia    0.28%

Sub-Saharan Africa    0.03%

Regional Exposure

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20% 22% 24% 26% 28%

Consumer Non-cyclical  26.88%

Financial  20.08%

Energy  11.85%

Consumer Cyclical  11.31%

Basic Materials    9.71%

Industrial    7.37%

Communications    7.30%

Technology    2.11%

Utilities    1.24%

Cash    1.01%

Sector Exposure

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 32 of 35

P
age 52



Active UK Equities – Responsible Investment

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 33 of 35

P
age 53



Disclaimer

This material is for information only and for the sole use of the recipient, it is not to be reproduced, copied or shared. The report was prepared
utilizing agreed scenarios, assumptions and formats.

Brunel accepts no liability for loss arising for the use of this material and any opinions expressed are current (at time of publication) only. This
report is not meant as a guide to investing or as a source of specific investment recommendations and does not constitute investment research.

Certain information included in this report may have been sourced from third parties. While Brunel believes that such third party information is
reliable, Brunel does not guarantee its accuracy, timeliness or completeness and it is subject to change without notice.

Nothing in this report should be interpreted to state or imply that past performance is an indicator of future performance. References to
benchmark or indices are provided for information only and do not imply that your portfolio will achieve similar results.

Brunel provides products and services to professional, institutional investors and its services are not directed at, or open to, retail clients.

Forging better futures
Brunel Portfolios Performance Report for Quarter Ending 30 September 2019

Gloucestershire County Council

Information Classification: Public

Page 34 of 35

P
age 54



Information Classification: Public Page 35 of 35

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 87

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes -
	6 Pension Fund Risk Register
	FINAL Risk Register for 4 Nov Pension Committee

	7 Investment Performance Summary
	Item 7 - Brunel Performance Report - Q3 Summary to 30 September 2019

	9 Exempt Minutes
	10 Independent Advisor Report
	11 2019 Actuarial Valuation - Hymans Robertson

